GOA, DAMAN AND DIU MINING CONCESSIONS (ABOLITION AND DECLARATION AS MINING LEASES) ACT, 1987

16 of 1987

[23rd May, 1987]

CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1 :- PRELIMINARY

- 1. <u>Short title</u>
- 2. Definitions
- 3. Act to override all other enactments, etc

CHAPTER 2 :-<u>ABOLITIONOF MINING CONCESSIONS AND DECLARATION AS MINING LEASES UNDER THE M</u>INE: AND MINERALS ACT

4. Abolition etc., of mining concessions

5. General effect of declaring the mining concessions to be mining leases

CHAPTER 3 :- PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS

- 6. Payment of amounts to concession holders
- 7. Payment of further amount

CHAPTER 4 :- COMMISSIONER OF PAYMENTS

8. Commissioner of Payments to be appointed

- 9. Payment by the Central Government to the Commissioner
- 10. Claims to be made to the Commissioner
- 11. Liability of Central Government to end on payment of claim
- 12. Disputes how to be dealt with
- 13. Undisbursed or unclaimed amount to be deposited to the general revenue account

CHAPTER 5 :- MISCELLANEOUS

- 14. Amendment of Act 67 of 1957
- 15. Penalties
- 16. Offences by companies
- 17. Protection of action taken in good faith
- 18. Delegation of powers
- 19. Declaration as to the policy of the State
- 20. Power to make rules
- 21. Power to remove difficulties
- 22. Validation

SCHEDULE 1 :- DETAILS OR MINING CONCESSIONS ABOLISHED AND DECLARED AS MINING LEASES ON ANI FROM THE APPOINTED DAY

SCHEDULE 2 :- THE SECOND SCHEDULE

GOA, DAMAN AND DIU MINING CONCESSIONS (ABOLITION AND DECLARATION AS MINING LEASES) ACT, 1987

16 of 1987

[23rd May, 1987]

After Goa, Daman and Diu became part of India, the provisions of the Mines and Minerals (Regulation and Development) Act 1957 (1957 Act) except section 16 were extended to that Union territory with effect from 1-10-1963 and section 16 was extended with effect from 15-1-1966. The Controller of Mining Leases in exercise of the powers conferred on him under section 16 of the Act, proceeded with the modification of the mining concessions granted under the earlier Portuguese Mining Laws of 1906 so as to bring them in conformity with the provisions of the 1957 Act. The concession holders challenged the proceedings of the Controller on the ground that the concessions held by them were not existing mining leases within the meaning of the provisions of the 1957 Act, The Bombay High Court in its judgment dated 29-9-1983 held that the concessions were not mining leases within the meaning of 1957 Act. As a result of this judgment, the Controller of Mining Leases could not take further action to modify the concessions. The High Court in another case held that no royalty could be charged on the minerals extracted by the concession holder, as such mining concessions are not mining leases. 2. The above two decisions have resulted in a situation in which all the existing mining concessions in Goa, Daman and Diu are not subject to the provisions of any law. The Portuguese Mining Laws had been repealed on the commencement of the 1957 Act and the aforesaid decisions have declared that these concessions are not mining leases under the 1957 Act. It is, therefore, necessary to bring all these mining concessions under the provisions of the 1957 Act for the purpose of regulation of these mines and for the development of minerals under the control of the Union. The Bill, therefore,

seeks to provide for the following, among other matters, namely:- (1) abolition of such of the mining concessions granted prior to the merger of Goa, Daman and Diu from the date of merger, i.e. 20th December, 1961 and such of those mining concessions granted after the merger from the date next after the dates of such grant, and declaring all such concessions as mining leases under the 1957 Act which shall be in operation as such, from the dates of such declaration to a period of six months from the date of assent by the President of this legislation; (2) a right of renewal of the lease under the provisions of the 1957 Act and the rules thereunder after the expiry of the period of lease, i.e., a period of six months from the date of assent by the President of this legislation. (3) Payment of amounts for the abolition of the mining concession and declaring them as mining leases and for the appointment, of a Commissioner of Payments to disburse such amounts; (4) a validation provision declaring that royalties or dead rent payable for a mining lease under the 1957 Act shall be payable by the mining concession holders from the date on which their concessions were declared as mining leases and to provide that any amount paid by such concession holders shall not be refundable to them on the ground that the mining concessions are not mining leases. 3. The Bill seeks to achieve the above objects. -Gaz. of Ind., 30-4-1987, Pt. II, S. 2, Ext., p. 45 (No. 21)

CHAPTER 1 PRELIMINARY

1. Short title :-

This Act may called the Goa, Daman and Diu Mining Concessions (Abolition and Declaration as Mining Leases) Act, 1987.

2. Definitions :-

In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires,-

(a) "appointed day" means the 20th day of December, 1961;

(b) "Commissioner" means the Commissioner of Payments appointed under section 8;

(c) "concession holder" means a person who has been granted a mining concession;

(d) "date of assent" means the date on which the assent is given by the President to this Act;

(e) "Goa, Daman and Diu" means the Union territory of Goa, Daman and Diu;

(f) "mines and Minerals Act" means Mines and Minerals (Regulation and Development) Act, 1957;

(g) "mining concession" means a mining concession granted under the Portuguese Colonial Mining Laws, 1906 (Decree of 20th September, 1906);

(h) "notification" means a notification published in the Official Gazette;

(i) "prescribed" means prescribed by rules made under this Act;

(j) "specified date" means such date as the Central Government may, for the purpose of any provision of this Act, by notification, specify; and different dates may be specified for different provisions of this Act;

(k) words and expressions used and not defined, but defined in Mines Act, 1952 or Mines and Minerals Act, 1948, shall have the meanings, respectively, assigned to them in those Acts.

3. Act to override all other enactments, etc :-

The provisions of this Act shall have effect notwithstanding anything inconsistent therewith contained in any enactment (other than this Act), or any judgment, decree or order of any court, tribunal or other authority or any instrument having effect by virtue of any enactment other than this Act.

CHAPTER 2

ABOLITION OF MINING CONCESSIONS AND DECLARATION AS MINING LEASES UNDER THE MINES AND MINERALS ACT

4. Abolition etc., of mining concessions :-

(1) Every mining concession specified in the First Schedule shall, on and from the appointed day, be deemed to have been abolished, and shall, with effect from that day, be deemed to be a mining lease granted under Mines and Minerals Act, 1948, and the provisions of that Act shall, save as otherwise provided in this Act, apply to such mining lease.

(2) Every mining concession specified in the Second Schedule shall, on and from the day next after the date of grant of the said concession and specified in the corresponding entry in the eighth column of the said Schedule, be deemed to have been abolished and shall, with effect from that day, be deemed to be a mining lease granted under Mines and Minerals Act, 1948, and the provisions of that Act shall, save as otherwise provided in this Act, apply to such mining lease.

(3) If, after the date of assent, the Central Government is satisfied, whether from any information received by it or otherwise, that there has been, any error, omission or misdescription in relation to the particulars of any mining concession or the name and residence of any concession holder specified in the First or the Second Schedule, it may, by notification, correct such error, omission or misdescription, and on the issue of such notification, the First or the Second Schedule, as the case may be, shall be deemed to have been amended accordingly.

5. General effect of declaring the mining concessions to be mining leases :-

(1) Where a mining concession has been deemed to be a mining lease under section 4, the concession holder shall, on and from the day mentioned in that section, be deemed to have become the holder of such mining lease under Mines and Minerals Act, 1948in relation to the mine to which the mining concession relates, subject to the condition that the period of such lease shall, notwithstanding anything contained in that Act, extend up to a period of six months from the date of assent.

(2) On the expiry of the period of any mining lease under sub-section (1), it may, if so desired by the holder of such lease and on an application being made by him in accordance with the provisions of Mines and Minerals Act, 1948 and the rules made thereunder, be renewed on such terms and conditions, and up to the maximum period for which, such lease can be renewed under the provisions of that Act and the rules made thereunder.

CHAPTER 3 PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS

6. Payment of amounts to concession holders :-

Every concession holder specified in the second column of the First and the Second Schedules shall be given by the Central Government, in cash, and in the manner specified in Chapter IV, for the abolition of the mining concessions held by him, and declaring it as a mining lease, under section 4, an amount equal to the amount specified against him in the corresponding entry in the eighth column of the First Schedule and the ninth column of the Second Schedule, as the case may be.

7. Payment of further amount :-

(1) There shall also be given by the Central Government, in cash, to every concession holder specified in the second column of the First and the Second Schedules, simple interest at the rate of four per cent per annum on the amount specified against such concession holder in the corresponding entry in the eighth column of the First Schedule and the ninth column of the Second Schedule, as the case may be, for the period commencing on the date of assent and ending on the date of payment of such amount to the Commissioner.

(2) The amount referred to in sub-section (1) shall be in addition to the amount specified in the First Schedule or the Second Schedule, as the case may be.

CHAPTER 4 COMMISSIONER OF PAYMENTS

8. Commissioner of Payments to be appointed :-

(1) For the purpose of disbursing the amounts payable to the concession holders under this Act, the Central Government shall appoint such person as it may think fit to be the Commissioner of Payments.

(2) The Central Government may appoint such other persons as it may think fit to assist the Commissioner and thereupon the Commissioner may authorise one or more of such persons also to exercise all or any of the powers exercisable by him under this Act and different persons may be authorised to exercise different powers.

(3) Any person authorised by the Commissioner to exercise any of the powers exercisable by the Commissioner may exercise those powers in the same manner and with the same effect as if they have been conferred, on that person directly by this Act and not by way of authorisation.

(4) The salaries and allowances of the Commissioner and other persons appointed under this section shall be defrayed out of the Consolidated Fund of India.

9. Payment by the Central Government to the Commissioner :-

(1) The Central Government shall, within thirty days from the specified date, pay, in cash, to the Commissioner, for payment to the concession holders, a sum equal to the sum specified against the mining concessions in the First and the Second Schedules, together with the amount of interest referred to in section 7

(2) A deposit account shall be opened by the Central Government, in favour of the Commissioner, in the Public Account of India, and every amount paid under this Act to the Commissioner shall be deposited by him to the credit of the said deposit account and the said deposit account shall be operated by the Commissioner.

(3) Records shall be maintained by the Commissioner in respect of each of the concession holder in relation to which payments have been made to him under this Act.

(4) Interest accruing on the amount standing to the credit of the deposit account referred to in sub-section (2) shall enure to the benefit of the concession holders.

10. Claims to be made to the Commissioner :-

(1) Every concession holder, having a claim for the payment of the amount referred to in section 6, shall prefer such claim before the Commissioner within thirty days from the specified date : Provided that if the Commissioner is satisfied that the claimant was prevented by sufficient cause from preferring the claim within the said period of thirty days, he may entertain the claim within a further period of thirty days, but not thereafter.

(2) The Commissioner shall fix a certain date on or before which every claimant shall file the proof of his claim.

(3) Not less than fourteen days' notice of the date so fixed shall be given by advertisement in one issue of the daily newspaper in the English language and one issue of any daily newspaper in the regional language as the Commissioner may consider suitable, and every such notice shall call upon the claimant to file the proof of his claim with the Commissioner within the time specified in the advertisement.

(4) Every claimant, who fails to file the proof of his claim within the time specified by the Commissioner, shall be excluded from the disbursement made by the Commissioner.

(5) The Commissioner shall, after such investigation as may, in his opinion, be necessary and after giving the concession holder, a reasonable opportunity of being heard, by order in writing, admit or reject the claim in whole or in part.

(6) The Commissioner shall have the power to regulate his own procedure in all matters arising out of the discharge of his functions, including the place or places at which he will hold his sittings and shall, for the purpose of making any investigation under this Act, have the same powers as are vested in a civil court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, while trying a suit in respect of the following matters, namely:-

(a) the summoning and enforcing the attendance of any witness and examining him on oath;

(b) the discovery and production of any document or other material object producible as evidence.

(c) the reception of evidence on affidavits;

(d) the issuing of any commission for the examination of any witnesses.

(7) Any investigation before the Commissioner shall be deemed to be a judicial proceeding within the meaning of sections 193 and Section 228 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 and the Commissioner shall be deemed to be a civil court for the purposes of section 195 and Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973.

(8) A claimant, who is dissatisfied with the decision of the Commissioner, may prefer an appeal against the decision to the principal civil court of original jurisdiction within the local limits of whose jurisdiction the relevant mine is situated.

11. Liability of Central Government to end on payment of claim :-

After admitting a claim under this Act, the amount due in respect of such claim shall be paid by the Commissioner to the person or persons to whom such amount is due, and, on such payment, the liability of the Central Government in respect of such claim shall stand discharged.

12. Disputes how to be dealt with :-

In the event of there being a doubt or dispute as to the right of a person to receive the whole or any part of the amount referred to in Section 6 or Section 7, the Commissioner shall refer the matter to the court for a decision, and shall make the disbursement in accordance with the decision of the court. Explanation.- In this section "court", in relation to a mining concession, means the principal civil court of original jurisdiction within the local limits of whose jurisdiction the mines relating to such concession is situated.

13. Undisbursed or unclaimed amount to be deposited to the general revenue account :-

Any money paid to the Commissioner which remains undisbursed or unclaimed after such payment for a period of three years shall be transferred by the Commissioner to the general revenue account of the Central Government; but a claim to any money transferred may be preferred to the Central Government by the concession holder entitled to such payment and shall be dealt with as if such transfer had not been made, the order, if any, for the payment of the claim being treated as an order for the refund of revenue.

CHAPTER 5 MISCELLANEOUS

14. Amendment of Act 67 of 1957 :-

In Mines and Minerals (Regulation and Development) Act, 1957 in sub-section (1) of Section 4, after the second proviso, the following proviso shall be inserted and shall be deemed to have been inserted with effect from the 1st day of October, 1963, namely:- "Provided also that nothing in this sub-section shall apply to any mining lease (whether called mining lease, mining concession or by any other name) in force immediately before the commencement of this Act in the Union territory of Goa, Daman and Diu."

15. Penalties :-

Any person who contravenes the provisions of this Act shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to two years or with fine which may extend to two thousand rupees, or with both.

16. Offences by companies :-

(1) Where an offence under this Act has been committed by a company, every person who at the time the offence was committed was in charge of, and was responsible to, the company for the conduct of the business of the company as well as the company, shall be deemed to be guilty of the offence and shall be liable to be proceeded against and punished accordingly: Provided that nothing contained in this sub-section shall render any such person liable to any punishment, if he proves that the offence was committed without his knowledge or that he had exercised all due diligence to prevent the commission of such offence.

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), where an offence under this Act has been committed by

a company and it is proved that the offence has been committed with the consent or connivance of, or is attributable to any neglect on the part of, any director, manager, secretary or other officer of the company, such director, manager, secretary or other officer shall be deemed to be guilty of that offence and shall be liable to be proceeded against and punished accordingly. Explanation.- For the purposes of this section,- (a) "company" means any body corporate and includes a firm or other association of individuals; and (b) "director", in relation to a firm, means a partner in the firm.

17. Protection of action taken in good faith :-

(1) No suit, prosecution or other legal proceeding shall lie against the Central Government or any officer or other employee of that Government, or any person authorised by that Government for anything which is in good faith done or intended to be done under this Act.

(2) No suit or other legal proceeding shall lie against the Central Government or any officer or other employee of that Government or any person authorised by that Government for any damage caused or likely to be caused by anything which is in good faith done or intended to be done under this Act.

18. Delegation of powers :-

(1) The Central Government may, by notification, direct that all or any of the powers exercisable by it under this Act, other than the powers conferred by section 20 and section 21, may also be exercised by such person or persons as may be specified in the notification.

(2) Whenever any delegation of power is made under sub-section (1), the person to whom such power has been delegated shall act under the direction, control .and supervision of the Central Government.

19. Declaration as to the policy of the State :-

It is hereby declared that this Act is for giving effect to the policy of the State towards securing the principles specified in clauses (b) and (c) of Article 39 of the Constitution. Explanation.- In this section, "State" has the same meaning as in Article 12 of the Constitution.

20. Power to make rules :-

(1) The Central Government may, by notification, make rules to carry out the provisions of this Act.

(2) Every rule made by the Central Government under this Act shall be laid, as soon as may be after it is made, before each House of Parliament, while it is in session, for atotal period of thirty days which may be comprised in one session or in two or more successive sessions, and if, before the expiry of the session immediately following the session or the successive sessions aforesaid, both Houses agree in making any modification in the rule or both Houses agree that the rule should not be made, the rule shall thereafter have effect only in such modified form or be of no effect, as the case may be; so, however, that any such modification or annulment shall be without prejudice to the .validity of anything previously done under that rule.

21. Power to remove difficulties :-

If any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of this Act, the Central Government may, by order, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Act, remove the difficulty. Provided that no such order shall be made after the expiry of a period of two years from the date of assent.

22. Validation :-

(1) Notwithstanding anything in any other law for the time being in force or any judgment, decree or order of any court, tribunal or other authority,-

(a) every concession holder shall, for the period commencing on and from the date when his mining concession had been declared to be a mining lease and ending with the date of expiry of the period of his lease under the provisions of this Act (hereafter in this section referred to as the said period), be liable to pay the dead rent or, as the case may be, royalty, due in respect of such lease under the provisions of the Mines and Minerals Act and the rules made thereunder, and such amount shall, save as otherwise provided in this section, be recoverable from him;

(b) any amount paid by the concession holder for the said period, either as a fixed tax or as a proportional tax, or both, or as a royalty under protest shall be deemed to have been dead rent or, as the case may be, royalty, paid in accordance with law and such amounts shall not be liable to be refunded; and

(c) due credit of all such amounts paid by a concession holder under clause (b) shall be given to him in determining the dead rent or, as the case may be, royalty payable by him under clause (a), as if this Act and Mines and Minerals Act, 1948 and the rules made thereunder had been in force at all material times, and accordingly-

(i) no suit or other proceeding shall be instituted, maintained or coninued in any court or other authority against the Government or any person or authority whatsoever for the refund of any amounts paid by a concession holder under clause (b); and

(ii) no court shall enforce any decree or order directing the refund of any amounts so paid, on the ground that the mining concession is not a mining lease.

(2) For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that nothing in sub-section (1) shall be construed as preventing any person,-

(a) from questioning, in accordance with the provisions of Mines and Minerals Act, 1948 and the rules made thereunder, the assessment of any dead rent or royalty for the said period; or

(b) from claiming refund of any dead rent or royalty paid by him in excess of the amount due from him under Mines and Minerals Act, 1948 and the rules made thereunder.

SCHEDULE 1

DETAILS OR MINING CONCESSIONS ABOLISHED AND DECLARED AS MINING LEASES ON AND FROM THE APPOINTED DAY

<u>SCHEDULE 2</u> THE SECOND SCHEDULE

[See section 4(2), section 6, section 7 and section 9(1)] DETAILS OF MINING CONCESSIONS ABOLISHED AND DECLARED AS MINING LE Situation Number and Date of Amount No. concession of the mine ______ date of aboli- (in Rs.) holder and his Village Tail

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1. Georgina Predico Oitei- Fe/Mang Colem Sanguem 2 of I I-7-1963 12-7-1963 11,200 Filomeng de ral do E stadoe Figu Quenim, outros. of Goa. 3. Firma Mineria Vagmoloi Pe- Fe/Mang Curdi Sanguem 4 of 11-7-1963 12-7-1963 8,200 Nacinol Ltd., risodo. of 5. Companhia Morga Foncul Ditto Vichundrem Ditto 6 of 10-8-1963 11-8-1963 11,600 Mineria Pro- ou Chicolmolo gresso limitada, of San